Answers to Industry Comments/Questions on the Draft Wallops Institutional Consolidated Contract (WICC) II Draft Statement of Work, dated 9/23/2011, Draft RFP posted 3/30/2012 and Industry Day 4/12/2012
6/4/12

123.  Reference SOW 1.0 Institutional Program Implementation and Business Management. Requirement:” Category 2 - Existing GSFC/WFF IT systems which the Contractor is required to, or may use during contract performance, for which the Contractor has input, output, and system administration, operation and maintenance responsibility including NASA information technology security requirements.”
Question: Please provide a list of all Category 2 systems, their operating platforms, and any associated databases.
  Answer:  See chart below.
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204.  Reference Section L.21 (a) (1), p. 147

Comment: The Table in L.21 (a) (1) says Volume I should be submitted in MS Word.

Question:  Can we PDF the signed SF 33 and any SF 30s and submit electronically.

 Answer:  Yes.  The final RFP will be revised to remove the MS Word requirement from the table in L.21(a)(1).  As indicated in section (a)(4) of L.21, Offerors may use MS Word or searchable PDF Format.

205.  Reference Section L.21 (a) (3), p. 147

Comment: Section L.21 (a) (3) says all pages of all volumes should be numbered.

Question:  Does this include Volume I, which includes the signed SF33?

       Answer:  No, the signed SF33 does not require a page number.
211.  The Past Performance Evaluation Factor of the Solicitation requires that references be “recent.” “Recent” is defined as a contract that is ongoing or completed less than 3 years prior to issuance of the RFP. This definition of “recent” unreasonably limits competition. Most Solicitations of this type have a 5 year definition for recent. The 5 year length of time better reflects business reality and opens competition with little or no risk to the government. 
Question:  Will the definition of “recent” in the Solicitation be changed from 3 years to 5 years, and if not please provide justification for rationale
  Answer:  Yes, this will be changed from 3 to 5 years in the final RFP.  
212.  Cost realism is listed as a significant factor in both the Mission Suitability and Cost factors of the Solicitation. The applicability and impact the cost realism analysis will have on distinct factors is unclear and makes it difficult for bidders to understand how their proposals will be evaluated. Furthermore, the Mission Suitability factor is divided into two Sub-factors with differing scoring weights. The applicability of cost realism to the two sub-factors is also unclear. In its present form the cost realism analysis has become a type of “super” factor with ambiguous applicability that increases the risk of arbitrary or unreasonable evaluation. 
Question: Will the Solicitation be amended to more clearly define the applicability of cost realism to the various factors and sub-factors.
 Answer:  No, the solicitation will not be amended in this area.  “Cost realism” is a significant aspect of the cost evaluation and will result in a probable cost that is presented to the Source Selection Authority.  Related to this “resource realism” reasonableness of labor hours, skill mix, etc. is included in the Mission Suitability evaluation and may result in findings that impact the Mission Suitability ratings and/or scores.
213.  In three places in Section L of the Draft RFP, there are proposal requirements regarding the CBAs. Page 160 says, "The Offeror shall describe its approach to dealing with organized labor/union representatives and general labor/management relations. Specifically, Offerors shall discuss their approach to negotiating Collective Bargaining Agreements CBAs and for dealing with potential labor strikes." On Page 172, you state that you want us to provide a brief description of Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) experience which shall include the specific contract, functional area covered by the CBA, and any actual or potential strike experience. Page 181 says, "The Offeror's approach to dealing with organized labor/union representatives and general labor/management relations will be evaluated for efficiency and effectiveness, and the potential for prevention of labor relations conflicts. The Offeror‘s approach to negotiating CBAs and dealing with potential labor strikes will be evaluated for efficiency and effectiveness, consistency with its overall contract management approach, and consistency and adaptation to Service Contract Act and Davis Bacon Act requirements." Based on these requirements regarding the CBAs, 
Question: If we have minimal experience with CBAs and/or strike experience, will it cause offeror’s to be downgraded in proposal evaluation?  
  Answer:  Within Mission Suitability, the Offeror’s approach to negotiating CBAs will be evaluated, but this will not focus on the Offeror’s “experience” with CBAs.  Alternatively, the Offeror’s CBA “experience” will be considered as part of the Past Performance evaluation.  CBA “experience” is included in the Past Performance questionnaire and it will be considered in the evaluation of contract “relevance” and “performance” for each of the past performance references. 

221. DRFP Reference: (L.25(a)). Past Performance Volume, Information from The Offeror,

(Page 169-170). 

This section states: “Prime offerors shall furnish the information requested below for all of your most recent contracts (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts with a minimum average annual cost/fee of $4,000,000 that your company has had within the last 3 years of the RFP release date.”
Question: The $4,000,000 annual cost fee disqualifies past performance reference contracts that are specifically relevant to WICC II, which makes it difficult for Small Businesses to demonstrate their true past performance and capabilities. Would the Government consider loosening the restriction to $2,000,000 or eliminate the restriction all together?

  Answer:  No, the $4,000,000 will remain in the final RFP.
222. DRFP Reference: (L.25(a)). Past Performance Volume, Information from The Offeror,

(Page 169-170). 

This section states: “Prime offerors shall furnish the information requested below for all of your most recent contracts (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts with a minimum average annual cost/fee of $4,000,000 that your company has had within the last 3 years of the RFP release date.”
Question: The restriction on recent contracts to contracts within the last 3 years disqualifies past performance reference contracts that are specifically relevant to WICC II, which makes it difficult for Small Businesses to demonstrate their true past performance and capabilities. Would the Government consider extending the 3 year limit to 5 years?

  Answer:   Yes.  See answer to Question 211.
242.  QA Survey Plan (Attachment J-13 Appendix 1 pages 4 thru 25)
Question: This plan requires 100% surveillance on most of the core requirements. However, the definition of 100% on page 3 raises the possibility of a subjective evaluation by an individual.  Please clarify the 100% evaluation process and monitoring criteria.

Answer:  No, 100% means we will look at every report or item or occurrence that occurred during that period but the evaluation will be objective.

244.  Section B.8, Requirement: Clause B.8(a) states:  "The Contractor shall use only those appropriate labor and indirect cost rates, which may be less than but shall not exceed the rates found in Attachment J-4, to calculate the proposed estimated costs for all cost-type task orders and the proposed price for all firm fixed price orders issued in accordance with the Task Ordering Procedure clause of this Contract."  Subparagraphs (e) and (f) of this clause appear to require use of a pre-established fixed fee percentage for each firm-fixed price service, supply, or construction task order without any variation depending on the nature and extent of the risk for each such task order.

Question: The Task Ordering Procedure clause referenced in Clause B.8(a) is Clause H.7, but this clause seems to be focused on cost type task orders and does not provide any description for the process to be used to handle firm fixed price task orders.  Please provide clarification on the process to be used to request and implement firm fixed price task orders.
   Answer:  For Firm Fixed Price task orders, the Contractor shall submit a FFP task plan using the direct labor and indirect rates in Attachment J-4, in accordance with Clause B.8, paragraph (a), and the profit percentage in Attachment J-4, in accordance with Clause B.8, paragraph (e).   

247.  Section H.15.(b), Requirement: The Contractor shall establish a record for Govt Clause H.15(b) states: "While on Government premises, the Contractor shall comply with requirements governing the conduct of personnel and the operation of the facility.  These requirements are set forth in NASA-wide or installation directives, procedures, handbooks and announcements.  The following cover many of the requirements: ....  The above list may be modified by the Contracting Officer to include additional issuances pertaining to the conduct of personnel and the operation of the facility."
a. Question: To the extent there are requirements not currently listed in Clause H.15(b) that are added by the Contracting Officer, will the contractor be entitled to an Equitable Adjustment if the newly added requirements have a material impact on cost, price or schedule? 
   Answer:  Yes, the contractor may submit a request for an equitable adjustment for consideration by the Government.
b. Question: The listing in Clause H.15(b) is not comprehensive by its terms; where can Offerors find the other requirements?
             Answer:  Clause H.15 includes the general requirements that apply to all occupants of Goddard Space Flight Center.  The contract SOW includes more specific requirements for this solicitation.  

284.  Reference: L.25 Past Performance Volume (JAN 2012, pages 169-173,  Requirement for major subcontractor is not clear. One interpretation is that an offeror must submit past performance for all of our contracts that meet the listed guidelines. It's a "shall" not a "may".

Request: Please confirm that the offeror and major subcontractors can decide which past performance citations they wish to include as long a they fit within the specified guidelines. 

  Response:  No, provision L.25 requires the Offeror (including significant subcontractors) to submit past performance information for ALL relevant contracts that meet the minimum size and recency criteria in the RFP.  

294. Reference: DRFP, page 147, L.21.(a).(3), last sentence. This sentence states that “A table of contents shall be provided with figures and tables listed separately.”

Question: We interpret this requirement to mean that a listing of “figures and tables” is to provided separately from the topical table of contents, rather than that figures need to be separately listed from tables. (For example, we call all figures and table “exhibits” and we provide a List of Exhibits separate from the Table of Contents; we assume this would be acceptable, but please confirm.)

  Answer:  Yes, this is acceptable 

Suggestion: Change the referenced sentence to “A table of contents and a listing of figures/tables shall be provided.”

  Response:  See above for answer to suggestion.
300.  Reference: DRFP, page 157, L.23.3.B, first paragraph says that the offeror shall include as part of its description for staffing SOW 1 a completed Exhibit 1. 

Question:  Should Exhibit 1 be included in Mission Suitability (it appears to be a cost document)? If Exhibit 1 is part of Mission Suitability, is Exhibit 1 excluded from page count?

 Answer:  Exhibits 1, 2, and 3 are only required in the Cost Volume; however, this information will be considered as part of the Mission Suitability evaluation as well.  There are no page limits for these exhibits since they are part of the Cost Volume.  The final RFP, Mission Suitability instructions L.23.3-Subfactor B Instructions will be clarified by removing references to the Exhibits.  

301.  Reference: DRFP, page 157, L.23.3.B, paragraph 2 says that the offeror shall describe its approach to staffing SOW elements 2-15. Sentence 4 in this paragraph states that this shall be accomplished by completing Exhibit 3 for each SOW element. 

Question: Should Exhibit 3 be part of Mission Suitability? If so, is it excluded from page count? 

  Answer:  See Answer to Question #300.  
304.  Reference: DRFP, page 160, L.23.3.Subfactor B, second complete paragraph, first sentence. “The Offeror shall describe their critical positions within the proposed WBS required to meet the requirements of the contract.”

Question: This sentence refers to “the proposed WBS.” The RFP defines a SOW WBS structure in Section L.24.2 (page 164) but this is the Government's defined SOW WBS, not a contractor-proposed WBS. The SOW (1.2.9) also references a Contract WBS (CWBS), which is typically developed by the contractor, but development and presentation of a CWBS is apparently not a proposal requirement. Please clarify. Should this RFP reference be “SOW WBS” rather than to a “proposed WBS”?
 Answer:  The final RFP, the Contract WBS (CWBS) reference will be deleted from the SOW.  In addition, the final RFP, L.23.3-Subfactor B, second complete paragraph, first sentence will be revised to delete “within the proposed WBS”.

306. Reference: DRFP, page 172, L.25.(a), next to the last bullet: “Statement of contract past safety performance and a record of your company’s OSHA recordable injuries and illnesses for the past 3 years.”

a.  Question:  This bullet is in a list that is preceded by the statement (in bold at the top of page 171), “The offeror shall provide the following information on all past/current contract references that meet the above criteria for the prime offeror and each significant subcontractor:” However, the referenced bulleted proposal instruction addresses two levels of requirements, the first being the “statement of contract past safety performance” which would be specific to each contract summary provided in response to Section L.25.(a), Information from the Offeror. The second proposal requirement in this sentence asks for a record of “company OSHA recordable injuries and illnesses for the past 3 years” which is a general corporate response and not contract-specific. If correct, we suggest that the latter requirement be placed in another Past Performance proposal instruction where it would not apply to each contract reference. We also recommend that this general instruction response be outside of the page limits for this volume.

b.  Question: The last bullet on page 172, deals with contract terminations. Likewise, this is a general instruction and not contract-specific. Similarly to above, we suggest that it be moved to another proposal instruction where it does not apply to each contract reference. (According to the table in L.21.(b).(1), this proposal response is apparently already indicated to be outside of the page limits for this volume.)
Answers a and b:  Agree, final RFP will be revised to delete these two specific items from the bulletized list and make them separate requirements under the following statement:  “Additionally, the Offeror shall address the following:”
308.  Reference: DRFP, Enclosure #1

Question: Are the RTOs fictional or are these based on actual, or very similar, events that have occurred within the past seven years at WFF?
  
  Answer:  The RTOs are fictional but they reflect the anticipated types of IDIQ tasks that may be issued under WICC II.  
309.  Reference: DRFP, Enclosure #1

Question: The RTOs did not have deliverables specified in the requirements section.  Will there be specified deliverables in the released RTO? 

  Answer:   No, the RTOs will not specify a list of deliverables, since the requirements are for support services.  
310.  Reference: Enclosure #1, RTO #1 
Question:   Is the rocket that is being transported a solid propellant rocket or liquid first stage rocket? 
 Answer:  RTO#1 is a pathfinder event and the rocket is not fueled.  RTO#1 will be revised to add this information in the final RFP.
311.  Reference:  DRFP, Enclosure #2, RTO #2 requires the collection of six samples of wetland and bay surface waters.  

Question:  Are six samples from each water area category required or just six total samples required?
             Answer:  A total of six samples are required (three from each location).  Final RFP, RTO #2 will be revised for clarity.  

315.  Reference: DRFP 

 
Suggestion: The quality and the stability of the WICC II workforce is likely of key concern to the Government. In some procurements, bidders will cost game by proposing employee compensation that is unrealistically low or not in reasonable relationship to the various job categories they provide. This should be viewed as evidence of failure to comprehend the complexity of the contract requirements. We believe that the objective of providing position descriptions for each labor category along with labor rates is to ensure an “apples to apples” comparison of base labor and the ability to assess reasonableness of compensation. In order to minimize the potential of cost gaming and to facilitate the ease by which the Government can evaluate the offerors, we suggest that NASA publish the skill levels (generic position titles and descriptions) and skill mix (including percentage of personnel in each category) in the RFP. If offerors deviate from the staffing estimate, they should be required to provide full rationale regarding the deviations. 

Response:  Additional historical data will be added to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.  Offerors are encouraged to propose their most effective/efficient approach to staffing the solicitation requirements, which may or may not be similar to the historical staffing data.  Offerors are required to provide rationale to support the reasonableness of their proposed staffing approach.  Resource realism will be evaluated in the Mission Suitability evaluation and Cost Realism will be evaluated as part of the probable cost assessment.  Inappropriate staffing (hours, skill mix, etc) may result in Mission Suitability findings and Cost realism adjustments.
316.  Question:  Would the Government place the following documents in the Technical Library?  
1. Current Facilities Management Plan for Real Property  

Answer:  There is no Facilities Management Plan for Real Property.  This is a new requirement for WICC II.

2. Current Emergency Service Operations Plan  

Answer:  This plan contains sensitive but unclassified information and cannot be made available.*

3. Current Aircraft Mishap Response Plan 

Answer:  This plan contains sensitive but unclassified information and cannot be made available.*

4. Written listing of equipment, outside of GSE, that is needed to operate the health unit.   
Answer:  It is up to the Contractor to determine what equipment, beyond the IAGP that is listed in Attachment J-3, is needed to meet the requirements of the SOW.  Required equipment will depend on the Contractor’s technical approach.

5. Current Triage Plan for the health unit 
Answer:  The WFF health unit complies with the Tidewater EMS Council Inc. 

Prehospital and Interhospital Regional Trauma Plan which can be found at http://www.tidewaterems.org.

6. Written Standard Operating Plan for the health unit 
 Answer:  There was no contract requirement for a written Standard Operating Plan (SOP) for the health unit in the WICC I contract.  Therefore, any SOP that does exist is for the internal use of the existing contractor only.   
7. Vehicle Preventive Maintenance Plan for all NASA Vehicles 

Answer:  There is no Vehicle Preventive Maintenance Plan for all NASA Vehicles.
8. NASA Annual Work Plan for Core and IDIQ Work  

Answer:  The core and potential return on investment IDIQ project list from the NASA Annual Work Plan has been uploaded to the technical library at located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.
9. Navy Core Annual Work Plan 

Answer:  There is no current Navy Core Annual Work Plan.

10. Energy and Water Management Plan 

Answer:  There is no Energy and Water Management Plan.  This is a new requirement for WICC II.

11. Quarterly Report on Customer (Patient) feedback  

Answer:  There is no Quarterly Report on Customer (Patient) feedback.  This is a new requirement for WICC II.

12. A copy of the PIV Monthly Report for March 2012 
Answer:  This is considered sensitive but unclassified information and cannot be made available.*
13. Current Space Utilization Plan Document   

Answer:  The current Space Utilization Plan document is available for reviewing in the COs office upon request.*
14.  Site Map with all buildings identified and labeled 

Answer:  This is considered sensitive but unclassified information and cannot be made available.*
15.  Current service contracts on the existing WICC (i.e., maintenance service contracts, etc.)  

Answer:  We are unable to provide current service contracts on the current WICC.  See answer to Question 161.
16. Wallops Master Plan 

Answer:  The Wallops Master Plan has been added to the technical library.
17. WFF Environmental Resource Document (ERD)
Answer:  The current Environmental Resources Document contains sensitive but unclassified information and cannot be made available.*

18. WFF regulatory permits; specifically the emissions parameters or plans that may be required by regulatory agencies   

Answer:  The air emissions permits for the WFF Main Base and Island have been added to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.  The permit for the operation of the waste water treatment facility has also been added to the technical library.  The permit for the operation of the potable water system is considered sensitive but unclassified and will not be made available.

19. WFF Environmental Management System’s current environmental Significant Aspects and Impacts and Targets and Objectives   

Answer:  This has been added to the technical library. 
*Successful offeror will have access to this information.

318.  The proposal preparation instructions for Subfactor A Technical Approach require the offeror to provide a technical approach and methodology narrative for each SOW section at SOW WBS Level 3.  

a.  Question:  The proposal preparation instructions and Section M evaluation criteria suggest that NASA’s definition of WBS level 3 is SOW paragraphs 2.0, 3.0, 4.0, etc. versus 2.1.2, 2.1.3, 2.1.4 etc.  Is this interpretation correct?

      Answer:  Yes, see answer to question 165.

b. Question:  Is there a CWBS published for this contract?  Where might it be found?

     Answer:  No, and any reference to a CWBS will be deleted in the final RFP.
319.  Reference Proposal Preparation Instructions, Mission Suitability Volume; Subfactor B—Contract Management Approach (page 157) (2nd paragraph on page):

“The Offeror shall describe its specific approach to staffing SOW Section 1, which is part of the Core. The data shall include, but not be limited to, the skill mix and the number of personnel for SOW section 1. This shall be accomplished by completing the staffing in Exhibit 1, which shall cross reference all listed personnel to WBS SOW 1, and be consistent with the corresponding cost proposal Exhibit 2 for SOW 1 labor.”

Question:  Which Exhibit 1 should be completed?  There are several Exhibit 1 Summary Cost work sheets but none are designed to show labor related data.  Please clarify.
  Answer:  See Answer to Question #300.
320.  Reference Proposal Preparation Instructions, Mission Suitability Volume, Subfactor A Technical Approach (last paragraph in section on page 156): “The Offeror‘s proposal shall describe the Offeror‘s quality assurance approach…..” AND Subfactor B Contract Management Approach (last paragraph on page 158) “The Offeror shall submit a written Quality Assurance Plan (QAP) that shall identify the Offeror‘s approach……”  These two proposal requirements are largely identical.  
Question:  Should the QC program be presented in each section?  Please clarify.
Answer:   No.  The final RFP, L.23.3 Subfactor A-Technical Approach, last paragraph will be moved to the end of the quality assurance plan paragraph under Subfactor B-Contract Management Approach. 
321. Reference Proposal Preparation Instructions, Mission Suitability Volume; Subfactor B—Contract Management Approach (page 160) (Last paragraph on page): 

“The Offeror's proposal shall address provision I.56 (i.e., SERVICE CONTRACT ACT (SCA) OF 1965). The Offeror shall identify all non-exempt positions, and propose compensation packages in accordance with the SCA and the instructions in I.56 which will be employed to support the contract effort, including any union agreements covering those positions.”
a. Question:  The Service Contract Act of 1965 is a rather broad subject to address in a page limited proposal.  Can the Government be more specific regarding what specific subject areas the contractor should address?
                     Answer:  The final RFP Section L.23.3-Subfactor B Contract Management Approach, paragraph referencing Service Contract Act will be revised to delete the following:   “The Offeror's proposal shall address provision I.56 (i.e., SERVICE CONTRACT ACT (SCA) OF 1965). The Offeror shall identify all non-exempt positions, and propose compensation packages in accordance with the SCA and the instructions in I.56 which will be employed to support the contract effort, including any union agreements covering those positions.”  These are contract compliance requirements, but they will not be part of the proposal/evaluation.  

b. Comment:  In addition, exempt and non-exempt positions, compensation packages, fringes, etc. are addressed in the Total Compensation Plan required on page 159 of the proposal preparation instructions.  The data required in both sections appears to result in some redundancy in a very page limited proposal.
     Response:  See Answer to a. above.
331. Reference SOW 5.0 and 6.0 and the proposal preparation instructions Mission Suitability, Subfactor A Technical Approach:

“The Offeror shall describe its understanding, both breadth and depth, of the requirements in the SOW including an explanation of its technical approach and methodology. Based on the functional requirements contained in Attachment J-1& 2, provide: (1) a narrative that addresses the Offeror‘s technical approach and methodology for providing technical support to both NASA and Navy combined as described in each of the SOW Sections 2.0-15.0 (J-1) and appendix (J-2) at SOW WBS Level 3 (2.0-15.0); and (2) a narrative describing the single most critical aspect within each functional SOW Section (2.0-15.0), including the Offeror‘s specific approach for accomplishing each of the identified critical SOW aspect.”

Inasmuch as NASA plans to negotiate the price and possibly the subcontract type with NISH, responding in the proposal (subfactors A and B) with regard to methodology, technical approach and staffing seems pointless.  Please clarify what type of proposal response the government desires, if any, for the NISH subcontracted sections.  

Answer:  See Answer to Question 186 for revisions to Subfactor A-Technical Approach.   

The Mission Suitability instructions quoted above will be revised to remove the requirement to address the NISH SOWs (5.0 and 6.0) within Subfactor A.  Instead, these areas will be specifically addressed within subcontract management (within Subfactor B).  The final RFP L.23.3-Subfactor B, fourth paragraph will we revised to add the following language:  

“In addition, address your approach and any unique subcontract management challenges associated with the NISH requirements in SOWs 5.0 and 6.0.”  See Answers to Questions 165 (as revised), 186 and 187.
357. Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-003 RFP Sec. L.25 (b) Past Performance Questionnaires, page 172. The DRFP states “The Offeror shall instruct each of its references to return the questionnaire directly to the Government in a sealed envelope.”
Question: Can questionnaires be submitted to the government via email as opposed to standard mail?

   Answer:  No, questionnaires shall be submitted via mail only.  

360.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 28, Paragraph 2.8.1.d states, “The Contractor shall achieve energy consumption levels that are at least 30% below the levels established in the version of ASHRAE Standard or the International Energy Conservation Code as appropriate.”

a. Question:  Within what time frame must the reduced energy consumption levels be achieved?
  Answer:  SOW 2.8.1.d is IDIQ design services.  The requirement quoted in the question applies to design services that may be requested in an IDIQ task at which point the timeframe would be specified.  It is a requirement that design energy consumption is “30% below the levels established in the most current version of ASHRAE Standard of the International Energy Conservation Code as appropriate”.  
b. Question:  Does this requirement apply to existing facilities or new facilities or both? 
  Answer:  The requirement could apply to IDIQ designs for rehabilitation of existing facilities and design of new facilities.
c. Question:  Which version of the ASHRAE Standard or the International Energy Conservation Code is to be used?
 Answer:  See answer to Question #151.

d. Question:  What are the current levels of energy consumption? 
  Answer:  The levels of energy consumption vary building by building.  SOW 2.8.1 does not require a reduction from current levels.  It is a requirement that any potential design IDIQ task be completed such that the designed energy consumption is “30% below the levels established in the most current version of ASHRAE Standard or the International Energy Conservation Code as appropriate.”

e. Question:  If the contractor reduces energy consumption by 30%, how are these cost reimbursed or captured? 
 Answer:  SOW 2.8.1.d is for IDIQ design services only.  As a result, there is no current requirement for implementation.  In addition, there is no cost reimbursed or captured.
f. Question:  Does the govt want the energy reducing methods submitted as a separate option to the contract? 
  Answer:  No.  SOW 2.8.1.d applies to potential IDIQ design services only.
g. Question:  If the contractor is providing services to the govt, how is energy consumption enforced? 
           
  Answer:  There is no energy consumption enforcement.
361.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 29, Paragraph 2.8.1.f states, “The contractor shall implement water conservation techniques that are life-cycle cost-effective and will assist in a facility wide reduction of Wallops’ water intensity (gallons/gross square foot) compared to Fiscal Year 2007 usage by two percent per Government fiscal year.”

a. Question:  Does the reference to “gallons/gross square foot” apply to buildings only or to buildings and land?
 Answer:  “Gallons/gross square foot” applies to buildings only.
b. Question:  For buildings, does “gross square foot” refer to building footprint or to total interior square footage for multi-floor buildings? 
 Answer:  “Gross square foot” refers to total interior square footage.
c. Question:  Are low-water-usage buildings such as hangars included in this measurement?
  Answer:  Yes, hangars are included in the measurement of current usage.
d. Question:  Is the data for 2007 water usage available for the entire site building by building or by square footage?
  Answer:  Data for 2007 water usage is available for the entire site.
e. Question:  Are the “water conservation techniques” provided to the govt submitted as an option to the contract? 
  Answer:  No, SOW 2.8.1.f applies to potential IDIQ design services only.
f. Question:  How are the water conservation techniques enforced?
  Answer:  There is no enforcement of water conservation techniques.  SOW 2.8.1.f is for IDIQ design services only.  There is no requirement for implementation.
362.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 106, Paragraph 8.2.2:  

Question: To what standard(s) shall the Annual Inspection be conducted?

  Answer:  Per SOW 8.2.2, all buildings must be inspected to “ensure compliance with applicable environmental requirements.”  Each building may have different environmental requirements depending on the operations conducted in the building.  The inspections should look for non-compliance with the laws, regulations, policies, and permits referenced in SOW 8.1.b.  

363.   Reference: Page 125, Paragraph 9.15.d specifies that the contractor shall “arrange for confidential assistance to Government employees….who are experiencing emotional problems such as…drug abuse problems, or alcoholism.”  Page 126, Paragraph 9.15.k specifies that “The EAP Counselor shall notify management of Drug-Free Workplace issues.” 

a. Question: To what extent is there a conflict in these two requirements?

Please Clarify:  The statement “arrange for confidential assistance”.

  Answer:  There is no conflict.  Notification to management includes summary information on issues that exist on the facility; however, the summary information does not include information on individuals.

b. Question: Would the govt please define “emotional problems”?

  Answer:  Emotional problems are wide ranging.  SOW 9.15.d gives some specific examples:  “emotional problems such as depression, anxiety, family stress, drug abuse problems, or alcoholism.”  
364.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 156, Paragraph 12.1 states, “All portions of the LAN and WAN services are maintained by a …..NICS contract.”  However, Page 159, Paragraphs 12.2.3.d and 12.2.3.e appear to require the WICC contractor to support and maintain the LAN and WAN systems.  Further, Page 159, Paragraph 12.2.3.f states that the WICC contractor shall “Submit MAC request to the LAN and WAN support services contractor…”
Comment:  Please Clarify: The interface between the NICS contract and the WICC contract.

  Response:  There is not a conflict as some requirements are Core and some IDIQ.  There are no maintenance services for the LAN and WAN under Core services since these services are currently provided by another contractor as stated in SOW 12.1.  However, the Government has included these services as an IDIQ requirement in SOW 12.2.3 in the event that the Government technical approach changes.  

365.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 167, Paragraph 14.1 states, “The contractor shall ensure that incoming mail from the USPS has been x-rayed at the WFF central receiving facility”. However, Paragraphs 15.6.1.e and 15.6.2.h require X-ray inspection of only that material “capable of fitting into the X-ray machine.”  

Please Clarify: Does everything fit in the X-Ray machine, and if it doesn’t, what steps are taken next?

Additionally, Page 182, Paragraph 15.6 states, “The contractor shall provide the necessary resources to provide X-ray services for all [emphasis added] incoming material, supplies, and small packages.  

Please Clarify: the X-ray requirement.

  Answer:  Historically, all USPS incoming mail fits in the X-ray machine which has a 3 foot by 3 foot opening.  If USPS packages do not fit in the machine, then the packages would be visually inspected per the USPS suspicious mail guidelines.  Not all incoming items processed under SOW 15.6 fit into the X-ray machine.  The final RFP, SOW 14.1, statement in the Introduction, “The Contractor shall provide the necessary resources to provide x-ray services for all incoming material, supplies and small packages”, will be revised to remove the word “all” so the wording in the Introduction matches the wording of the Requirements in SOW 15.6.1 and 15.6.2, which is to X-ray those items that fit in the X-ray machine.

366.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 191, Paragraph 15.10.a states, “The contractor shall provide resources to accomplish on and near site office and lab moves.”  

a. Question: Does the WICC contractor physically do the moving?

Please clarify: Paragraph 15.10.c implies that a separate contractor performs the physical moves.  

 Answer:  Yes, the WICC contractor is responsible for the physical moves.
b. Question: How is the term “near site” defined?
 Answer:   The final RFP, SOW 15.10.a will be revised to read as follows: “The contractor shall provide resources to accomplish onsite office and lab moves.”
367.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 15, Paragraph 1.3.5:  

a. Question:  Does “sustaining engineering” include updating computer software and operating systems, security patches, etc.? 

         Answer:  No, SOW 1.3.5 applies to Government-furnished property, Contractor-acquired property, and Contractor capitalized plant equipment.  There is no computer software or systems on the Government-furnished property list.  However, as stated in SOW 1.0, the SOW subsections include 3 categories of information technology (IT) systems for which the Contractor has some responsibility.  Those identified as Category 2 or Category 3 in the SOW will require sustaining engineering including updating computer software and operating systems, security patches, etc.

b. Question: Does this include repair/update/replace analyses?

        Answer:  Yes.  Repair/update/replace analyses is included for the property items covered by the SOW.

368.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 18, Paragraph 2.1.3:  

Question: Should the reference to NPR 8820.2 be to NPR 8831.2 instead?

 Answer:  No, NPR 8820.2 is correctly reflected in the SOW.

369.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 53, Paragraph 3.5.4.c:  

Question: Are State of Virginia requirements for elevator inspections included in the compliance requirement?
 Answer:   No, State of Virginia requirements for elevator inspections are not included in the compliance requirement.
370.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 62, Paragraph 3.12, Standard:  

Please clarify: the last sentence in this paragraph.

Response:  The last sentence of the Standard in SOW 3.12 will be revised to delete the word “in.”  The final RFP will read as follows: “Snow and ice are removed from surfaces and are appropriately treated in accordance with the WFF Snow Plan and as directed by the CO or designee.”  SOW 3.12 is IDIQ; no work is done unless directed by the CO or designee such as the COTR.  The WFF Snow Plan is a detailed plan listing priority areas for treatment and methods of treatment.
371.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 72, Paragraph 5.7.4:  
a.  Comment-Please Clarify: There appears to be a conflict between the emergency response time in the Requirement (2 hours) and the Standard (8 hours).  
     Response:  There is no conflict between the Requirement and the Standard.  The Requirement states that if there is a potential for hazard to employees then the Contractor shall respond to emergency service calls within 2 hours; otherwise, the standard states that emergency service calls are responded to within 8 hours.
The Requirement also states, “If a tree is removed that has market value, the Government must be reimbursed by the contractor for the market value.”  

b. Comment: Recommend this be reworded to read “…Government must be reimbursed by the contractor for the net market value.” 
 
        Response:  No, the requirement will not be modified.  The Contractor shall be paid for the costs of tree removal.  The Government will be reimbursed for the market value of the tree.  

372.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 180, Paragraph 15.3.2:  
Question: Is the contractor required to maintain inventory control of flight critical components and/or hardware?
  Answer:  No.  The contractor is not required to maintain inventory control of flight critical components and/or hardware.
373.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 181, Paragraph 15.5:  

Question: Are NASA pressure vessel requirements applied to compressed gas containers?
  Answer:  No, NASA pressure vessel requirements are not applied to compressed gas containers.
374.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-004 SOW Page 143 States: “The Contractor shall provide training/education to all WFF personnel (to include Government and contractors) on appropriate topics such as Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) training, Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) training, Basic First Aid, etc. on a regular basis.”

Question: Currently, the incumbent contractor also provides for Fire Extinguisher training scheduled through Satern, could you please clarify if this requirement is being eliminated?
  Answer:  No, the requirement is not being eliminated.  Please see Attachment J-2, Section 11.8.5, which lists the core data for fire education and includes fire extinguisher training.
375.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-005 SOW APP Workload Information - Workload information and equipment quantities provided in Attachment J-2 for the Core Services have significant variances (in some instances 50%) that will make development of BOE’s and pricing very subjective.  

a.  Question: Will the government provide guidance on developing staffing taking the significant variance into consideration?

                   Answer:  A list of labor categories and hours has been uploaded to the technical library at located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.

b. Question: Will the government provide the equipment list by building and the associated job plans for each type of equipment in order to adequately scope the maintenance requirements?

                    Answer:  The equipment list by building and associated job plans for each type of requirement will not be provided.  However, to adequately scope the maintenance requirements, equipment is listed in J-2, Appendix to SOW, Section 3 (put the title of the document here) as well as a list of labor categories and hours have been uploaded to the technical library at located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html. 

c.
Question: Will the government provide Maintenance and Operations staffing by skill level in order to gain an understanding of the size of the workforce?

  Answer:  See answer to question a.

380.  Reference: 146923-DRAFT-002-003 RFP Sec. L.23 MISSION SUITABILITY PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS (COMPETITIVE) (MAR 2011), Subsection 3. Mission Suitability Instructions by Subfactor, Subfactor A-- Technical Approach, second paragraph states “The Offeror shall also describe and prioritize the two (2) highest risks in their overall technical approach, explain why these risks are prioritized as the highest, identify how the risks will be mitigated by its technical approach, and describe the potential impact to the contract if the risks are not mitigated. We assume this means the two highest risks across all SOW level 3 areas as opposed to the top two risk areas for each SOW level 3 area. 
Question: Is this assumption correct?  

Please Clarify: If not, please provide further clarification.
  Answer:  Yes, the assumption is correct.  Offerors must address the two highest risks across all SOWs.

384.   Reference Proposal Preparation Instructions, Subfactor B—Contract Management Approach. Page 156 1st paragraph:  “The Offeror shall provide a description of its overall management approach and structure for the WICC II. Specifically, the Offeror shall include a discussion of its management approach for SOW Section 1……”  SOW Section 1 addresses Program Implementation, Business Management and Emergency Preparedness and Response (including subordinate paragraphs) in highly specific detail.  On page 159 of the proposal preparation instructions it states:

· 1st paragraph—“Task orders will be issued in accordance with the Task Ordering Procedure clause in Section H.7 of this RFP. The Offeror shall detail their process for responding quickly and efficiently to requests for task plans. The Offeror shall detail their plans for organizing, assigning staff, tracking, and managing task orders…….”

· 2nd paragraph—“The Offeror shall describe its approach to planning, scheduling, and centralized institutional work receipt and processing of all requirements of the WICC II SOW including all trouble calls and work requests…….”

· 3rd paragraph--The Offeror shall describe its current and proposed business systems that support its management approach and Integrated Management System. In accordance with SOW 1, this shall include ……….”

The proposal requirements on page 159 are completely redundant with those on page 156.  We request the government please review the instructions and eliminate the redundancy.

Response:  The information on page 156 relates to overall program management approach for the contract.  The information on page 159 relates to Task Order processes, institutional work receipt and processing, and current and proposed business systems.  We do not believe this information is redundant; however, we are anticipating modifying the language on page 156 for additional clarity.  It is anticipated in the final RFP Section L.23.3-Subfactor B-Contract Management, first sentence of the first paragraph will be deleted as follows:.   

From:  The Offeror shall provide a description of its overall management approach and structure for the WICC II.  Specifically, the Offeror shall include a discussion of its management approach for SOW Section 1, including its approach to acquiring and maintaining the appropriate management staff required for the WICC II contract.  The Offeror shall describe the process to be followed by the proposed management chain in obtaining decisions beyond their authority and in resolving priority conflicts for resources/functions not under their direct control such as personnel, finances, and facilities. Offerors shall address the areas of overall management such as on-the-job orientation, deletion or replacement of personnel due to attrition, varying of skill mix requirements, use of part-time support and hiring personnel to handle short or long term task order assignments, and policies on temporary assignments of company personnel with relevant specialized skills.  Offerors shall describe their approach to consistently allocate and distribute SOW 1 costs across all core SOW requirements and IDIQ tasks under the contract.
To:  Specifically, the Offeror shall include a discussion of its management approach for SOW Section 1, including its approach to acquiring and maintaining the appropriate management staff required for the WICC II contract.  The Offeror shall describe the process to be followed by the proposed management chain in obtaining decisions beyond their authority and in resolving priority conflicts for resources/functions not under their direct control such as personnel, finances, and facilities. Offerors shall address the areas of overall management such as on-the-job orientation, deletion or replacement of personnel due to attrition, varying of skill mix requirements, use of part-time support and hiring personnel to handle short or long term task order assignments, and policies on temporary assignments of company personnel with relevant specialized skills.  Offerors shall describe their approach to consistently allocate and distribute SOW 1 costs across all core SOW requirements and IDIQ tasks under the contract.
385.  Question:  Will NASA post the WFF Safety Manual in the Technical Library?

          Answer:    No.  WFF does not have a separate safety manual.  The WFF safety requirements are now found under GPR 8710.8 GSFC Safety Program Management is being posted to the technical library at located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.  

386.  Question:  RTO #1 says Offeror shall transport the first stage of a rocket… Does this include loading rocket and transportation frame onto the flatbed trailer or is the Offeror only responsible for transport?  

Answer:  Yes, the transportation includes loading the rocket and transportation frame onto the flatbed trailer.  The final RFP RTO #1 will be revised to incorporate this information.

387.  Question:  RTO #1 - Is the rocket segment a loaded solid propellant motor? If so is it a hazard class 1.3?
          Answer:  See Answer to Question 310.  RTO#1 is a pathfinder event and the rocket is not fueled.  The final RFP RTO#1 will be revised to incorporate this information.

388.  Question: Does the segment have ordnance installed (i.e., FTS)? 

Answer:  No, the segment does not ordnance installed.  The final RFP RTO #1 will be revised to incorporate this information.

389.  RTO #1 - At the visitor center boat basin:

a. Question; Will the barge have drive-on capability? If so, will it be affected by the tide?

                 Answer:  No, the barge will not have drive-on capability. The final RFP RTO #1 will be revised to incorporate this information. 

b. Question:   If the trailer and frame need to be lifted by crane onto the barge, will it be possible to drive the semi-tractor onto the barge?

                Answer:   No, it will not be possible to drive the semi-tractor onto the barge.  The final RFP RTO #1 will be revised to incorporate this information.

c. Question:  If the crane is required to load the barge, will the barge support transportation of the crane in addition to the rocket? 

                Answer:  No, the crane must be transported over land to the Island.  The final RFP RTO #1 will be revised to incorporate this information.

390.  Question:  At the Wallops Island boat basin, will the barge have drive-on capability? If so, will it be affected by the tide?  

            Answer:  No, the barge will not have drive-on capability.  The final RFP RTO #1 will be revised to incorporate this information.

391.  Question:  Will the barge include a crew responsible for positioning, tie down, and securing of cargo?  

Answer:  No, the positioning, tie down, and securing of the cargo is the responsibility of the WICC II Offeror as part of the RTO.  The final RFP RTO #1 will be revised to incorporate this information.

392.  Question:   Does the supplied crane and hoist include certified operators/riggers or are the operators and/or riggers to be provided by the Offeror?  

Answer:  Certified operators/riggers will need to be provided by provided by the WICC II Offeror as part of the RTO.

393.  Question:  Does the power cable that needs to be de-energized provide power to building H-100 or the boat basin near the visitor’s center?  

Answer:  The power cable does not provide power to H-100 but it does provide power to the boat basin area.  The final RFP RTO will be revised to incorporate this information.

394.  Question:  Are the two road block gates normally open or closed? If/when open, are they guarded by a security post?  

Answer:  The two road block gates are normally open and they are not guarded by a security post.

395.  In response to Question #160, the answer provided was "The size is approximately 320 - 350, but includes scope (security workforce of approximately 50 - 60) that is not included in this follow on effort." 

 
Question:  Does the size of 320 - 350 include the scope of work for SOW 5.0 and 6.0 Grounds Maintenance and Custodial Services? Could you provide the approximate size of the workforce for these efforts?
 
 Answer:  Yes, the size of 320-350 does include the scope of work for SOW 5.0 Grounds Maintenance and 6.0 Custodial Service.  We will not be providing the workforce for these efforts.  This work will be issued as IDIQ tasks with NISH vendors as directed subcontractors.   In addition, Mission Suitability, Subfactor A Technical Approach will be revised to remove the requirement to address the NISH SOW areas (5.0 and 6.0) within Subfactor A.  Instead, these areas will be specifically addressed within subcontract management (within Subfactor B).  Also, see Answer to Question 331.

396.
Question:  The answer to question 41 states the Grounds Maintenance is covered under the SCA and not a CBA. Can the government provide the WD information for the SCA labor categories (i.e., titles, wage requirements, etc.)? 
  Answer:  We will post wage determination number 2005-2095, Revision 11, dated June 6, 2011 as Attachment J-6 to the RFP on NASA's Business Opportunities at http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/bizops.cgi?gr=D&pin=51. 
397.
Reference: Representative Task Order 1 and 2

Question: In both RTOs, there is a comment at the end as follows: “This is a Mission Risk Level 1 (High) task order.” We cannot find where the Mission Risk Level is defined. We are aware that there is a mission complexity definition in B.8 (g) of the RFP; however that defines complexity as Low, Medium, or High, and appears to relate to complexity and not risk. Can you please provide a definition for Mission Risk Level 1?

  Answer:  In the final RFP the RTOs will be revised to read Mission Complexity High in lieu of Mission Risk Level 1.  Clause B.8 of the Draft RFP defines the levels.

398. Reference:  RFP Section L.23, 3 Subfactor A-Technical Approach, paragraph 5, sentence 4: “Please provide a TIP for each RTO that includes the following: 1) The essential elements of your technical approach to specifically address: a) any activities to be performed under the RTO that are beyond core requirements of the contract that are necessary to ensure institutional readiness and reliability, and.....”
Question: Does this mean we need to identify any and all task activities which lie outside the range of services provided in SOW Elements 1.0, 2.0, 3.0, 7.0, 8.0, 9.0, 11.0, 12.0, 14.0, and 15.0 ?  If this interpretation is not correct, please clarify.
 Answer:  No.  The TIP must address the essential elements of the offeror’s technical approach and specifically address task activities which are outside core requirements (i.e., IDIQ) within SOW Sections 1.0, 2.0, 3.0, 7.0, 8.0, 9.0, 11.0, 12.0, 14.0, and 15.0 that are necessary to ensure institutional readiness and reliability, and…  The final RFP Section L.23, 3 Subfactor A-Technical Approach, paragraph 5, sentence 4 will be revised from, (1)(a) any activities to be performed under the RTO that are beyond core requirements of the contract that are necessary to ensure institutional readiness and reliability, and.....” to (1)(a) any activities to be performed under the RTO that are beyond core requirements (i.e.,IDIQ) within SOW Sections 1.0, 2.0, 3.0, 7.0, 8.0, 9.0, 11.0, 12.0, 14.0, and 15.0 that are necessary to ensure institutional readiness and reliability, and.....”
399.
Reference: RTO #2:  Close fresh air dampers for Island and Main facilities occupied during launch. Assume all dampers must be manually closed. Facilities occupied are: V-25, V-100, W-20, W-40, U-55, U-70, U-30, and U-12.
Question: Where is facility U-12? It is not shown on the site building map.
 Answer:  U-12 is a small facility on the Wallops Mainland used for launch support.
400.
References: DRFP; page 19; E.6 52.246-11 HIGHER-LEVEL CONTRACT QUALITY REQUIREMENT (FEB 1999) DRFP; page 130; J.1, List of Attachments, J.19 Quality Assurance Plan DRFP; page 148; L.21.(b).(1). Table - Mission Suitability Volume row DRFP; page 158; L.23.3 Subfactor B; QAP paragraph starting on the bottom on page 158 DRFP; page 180; M.4.1 Subfactor B; QAP first full paragraph on page 180
Question: DRFP Clause E.6 states, “The Contractor shall comply with the higher-level quality standard - ANSI/ISO/ASQ Q9001-2000 and Attachment J-19, Quality Assurance Plan.” This 9001 standard includes the requirements for an eight-section Quality Manual Outline. DRFP L.23.3, Subfactor B, and the corresponding sections of M.4.1.B, define the proposal instructions and evaluation criteria for the offerors’ Quality Assurance Plan (QAP) that is to be submitted with the proposal. The topics identified in L.23.3 do not align in either number or subject matter with the eight sections of a 9001 Quality Manual. The requirements to comply with ISO9001 and the proposal preparation instructions of Section L seem not be aligned. Please clarify which topics the Government would like us to address in our proposal QAP.
 
  Answer:  The requirement to comply with the higher-level quality standard –ANSI/ISO/ASQ Q90001-2000 only applies to the following contract functions:  receiving project controlled and Government procured equipment and material; requirements of SOW 15.6, 15.6.1, and 15.6.2.  In the final RFP, Clause E.6 will be revised from, “The Contractor shall comply with the higher-level quality standard - ANSI/ISO/ASQ Q9001-2000 and Attachment J-19, Quality Assurance Plan.” to, “The Contractor shall comply with the higher-level quality standard – ANSI/ISO/ASQ A9001-2000 for receiving project controlled and Government procured equipment and material; requirements of Attachment J-1, Statement of Work sections 15.6, 15.6.1, and 15.6.2; and Attachment J-19, Quality Assurance Plan.  

401.
References: DRFP; page 130; J.1, List of Attachments, J.19 Quality Assurance Plan DRFP; page 148; L.21.(b).(1). Table - Mission Suitability Volume row DRFP; page 158; L.23.3 Subfactor B; QAP paragraph starting on the bottom on page 158 DRFP; page 180; M.4.1 Subfactor B; QAP first full paragraph on page 180 SOW; 1.2.9, Performance, Reliability and Quality

Question: Sections J, L, and M of the DRFP refer to a “Quality Assurance Plan” (QAP) that is to be provided as a part of the offerors’ Mission Suitability volume. However, in both the “requirements” and the “standards” sections of SOW 1.2.9, reference is made to a “Performance, Reliability, and Quality Plan” that is to be provided by the contract start date. The SOW requirement references “the quality portion of the plan.” The SOW requirement also refers to “risk management,” which is currently referred to in other sections of the DRFP and is addressed in other proposal sections. The SOW reference also addresses Work Instructions and SOPs. Please clarify if these DRFP and SOW requirements refer to the same or different plans and please clarify the scope of the Government's expected response to these requirements in our proposals.
  Answer:  The DRFP and SOW requirements refer to the same plan.  In the final RFP, the first sentence of SOW Section 1.2.9; Performance, Reliability and Quality; will be revised from, “The Contractor shall provide, by contract start date, and maintain a Performance, Reliability, and Quality Plan”, to, “The Contractor shall provide, by contract start date, and maintain a Quality Assurance Plan.”  All requirements of SOW Section 1.2.9 must be addressed in the Quality Assurance Plan.  The plan must be provided in accordance with the instructions in Section L.23.3 Subfactor B and will be evaluated as stated in Section M.4.1 Subfactor B.
402.
Reference: WICC DRFP Section L, Page 172 indicates that “The offeror shall provide … statement of contract past safety performance and a record of your company’s OSHA recordable injuries and illnesses for the past 3 years.” 

Question: Does the requirement to provide “a record of your company’s OSHA recordable injuries and illnesses for the past three years” imply that we should provide OSHA forms for each of the three reference contracts for the past three years. If so, are the OSHA forms excluded from the page limitation?
   Answer:  No.  The final RFP will be revised to delete this item from the bulletized list and make it a separate requirement under the following statement:  “Additionally, the Offeror shall address the following:”See Answer to Question 306.  
403.
Question:  Are there any plans to upgrade the CMMS to the latest version of Maximo (which is 7.0)?     
 Answer:  Yes, currently there is a plan to upgrade to Maximo version 7; however, at this time we do not have any specific schedule for implementation.
404.
Question:  In response the Q&A’s, the IDIQ 2011 task plans were placed into the technical library. Would the Government also place the 2011 core work task plans into the WICC II technical library? 
  Answer:  Core work is not issued under IDIQ tasks.

405.
Question:  Would the Government provide the total value of the WICC IDIQ tasks for each year for 2008, 2009, and 2010?
      
 Answer:  Yes.  See below.

WICC I IDIQ totals for Contract Years 2008-2010


2008

2009

2010

NASA
$9,281,410.36
   $13,418,674.39  $32,151,549.00*

Navy
$3,160,770.00      $1,776,172.38    $3,953,098.00
*Includes Horizontal Integrated Facility task order

This information will be posted to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.
406.
Question:  Can the Government provide any insight into the projected IDIQ task values for the next few years that can be used for total WICC II contract value estimations?  

  Answer:  No.  There is not a way to predict future IDIQ task values.  See Answer to Question 58.  
409.
Question:  There appears that interdependencies and relationships may exist in varying degrees between the Range Contractor and the WICC contractor in such areas, including but not limited to, as Technical facilities and Mission Operations Support, Facilities Planning and Engineering, Telecommunications and Engineering services, etc.  If true, how are those relationships managed? In addition, how are costs of interdependent services segregated and accounted for?
  Answer:  Range requirements will be coordinated through the COTR and separate task orders will be issued for required range support.  The WICC contractor will participate in range-related meetings where support will be required.  See Answer to Question 173.

410.
Question:  What is the largest size aircraft to utilize the airfield at Wallops and what is frequency of that aircraft and other aircraft take-offs and landings?  
 Answer:  Antonov AN-124 Russian transport is the largest size aircraft to utilize the airfield at Wallops. The frequency of take-offs and landings of that aircraft would depend on future mission requirements.  Historically, there have not been more than two take-offs and landings per year.  Attachment J-2, Appendix to Statement of Work, Section 11.9.1, states that the Contractor is required to standby for scheduled airfield take-offs and landings 1000 times per year +/- 100 times per year.  A standby event can be for more than one take-off or landing.
411.
Question:  What are the capacities for water and foam of the Crash/Rescue vehicles?  

 Answer: The capacities for water and foam of the crash/rescue vehicles along with photos, details and capabilities has been has been posted to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html.  See Answer to Question 281.
412.
Reference: L.23.3.B: Section L contains instructions for required content for the Quality Assurance Plan and the Safety and Health Plan. Attachment J-1, SOW, contains additional content requirements for these plans.
Question: Does the Government expect these Attachment J-1, SOW, requirements to be included in the plans, addressed only in the SOW, or addressed in both locations?
  Answer:    Any stated requirements of Attachment J-1, SOW, for the Quality Assurance Plan and the Safety and Health Plan must be addressed in the plans.  
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